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cial directions, if I should not survive, that my body should
not be buried near the grave of this unfortunate man.

Ai this writing, over a quarter of a century has passed
sinae the occurrence of that night ; but still those fancied
scenes are vividly impressed upon mj' mind, and no inci-
dent in my whole life has made such a lasting impression
on my feelings as those of that night.

HOTES ON THE HIgTOET OF POTTAWATTAMIE OOUNTT.

BY D. C. BLOOMER.

No. 4.
[Continued from page 142.]

TN January, 1867, an act was passed hy the general assem-
J. bly, amending the charter of the city of Council Bluffs, ̂
which greatly enlarged the boundaries of the corporation,
and the powers of the city council. The limits of the city
were made to embrace a territory about four miles square,
and extending westward to the Missouri river. A record-
ers' court was established, with exclusive jurisdiction over
all ofi'ences arising under the city ordinances, and with the
same jurisdiction in all other cases as justices of the peace,
within the corporate limits. The city was divided into five
wards, in each of which two aldermen are elected for two
years — their terms of offiee expiring in alternate years.

At thefirst election held under the new charter, on the 9th
day of March, 1857, the whole number of votes cast was
three hundred and eighty-nine, and the following officers
were chosen : — /

r—J. S. Hooton.
Recorder—Frank ^Street.
Treasurer—S. H. Craig.
Asse.'isor— S. K. ir'orterfield.
Oitu Marshal—H. J.'Barnes.
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Aldermen—¥ÍTst Ward, Jobn Graves, C'Eubank; Sec-
ond Ward, Henry Allen, J. P. 'Williams ; Third Ward, C.

•"Gove, T. P.'Treynor; Fourth Ward, J. T.' Baldwin, D, S.
''Nye ; Fifth Ward, L. W.'Babbitt, and D. W."'Carpenter.

The city council appointed George Snyder city attorney,
who resigned during the year ; when Caleb ' Baldwin was
appointed in his place.

A new code of ordinances was passed during the early
half of the year, deflning the duties of city officers, pro-
viding for the punishment of offences against the peace and
good order of the inhabitants, and establishing the grade cf
the principal streets. The salary of the mayor was fixed at
$300 ; of the recorder, $500 and fees, and chief engineer at
$600 per year. Provision was made for licensing billiard
tables and ten - pin alleys, on the payment of the sum of
twenty-five dollars. Commendable progress was made
during the year, in grading and improving the streets and
bridges. The wide street known as Broadway, extending
from the eastern part of the city, westward to the Missouri
river, was this year, for the distance of nearly half a mile,
furnished with an excellent side-walk through its principal
husiness sections. This was the first side-walk erected in
the city. Much attention began to be given this year
to the planting of forest and other trees along the streets,
and in the adjacent lots. Those set out in this and subse-
quent years have grown rapidly, and now emhower large
portions of the city during the summer season, in their
beautifnl foliage.

Early in the season, the City Mills, a large, brick struo-
ture, were completed and pnt in operation, furnishing to
the farmers of the county a market for their wheat, and sup-
plying the market with an excellent quality of fiour. They
are situated near the business centre of the city, and under
the energetic management of Messrs. J. T. Baldwin and
G. M. Dodge, have been kept actively at work for upwards
of fifteen years. On the 27th of June quite a sensation
was awakened in the city, by the arrival of a large train of
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Mormons on their way to Salt Lake City. In the train
were thirty wagons, eaeh drawn hy four oxen, and the whole
party made up a caravan numbering several hundred peo-
ple—besides "much cattle."

The township of Crescent was established on the 2d of
March, 18.')7, and the first election held on the 19th of June
following, at which one hundred and nine votes were polled.
This township was originally settled by the Mormons,
soon after they arrived in the county. Here, in 1848, just
south of the broad bottom land skirting the valley of Pig-
eon Creek, in township 76, range 44, they erected a
large tabernacle of logs, with two large wings, capa-
ble of accommodating five hundred or six hundred peo-
ple. A mill was also erected near this point by , and
a number of farms opened. When the Mormons left—in
1852-3—they were succeeded by a number of families
from Indiana, prominent among whom was William A.
Reel, who settled here with his sons in 1852, and erected a
very large frame dwelling in a very beautiful locality, in
the northern part of the township. He also built a saw-
mill, and laid out a town site, to wbich he gave the name
of Americus. Among the other Gentile settlers of the
township were Edmund "^Latham, Joseph'Boulden, David
Dunkle, and Elkanah'Öal!. After the location of the line
of the 'Mississippi & Missouri railroad, and the alleged dis-
covery of rock in the bed of the Missouri river at Flor-
ence, in Nebraska, which point is just east of Crescent
township, a good deal of attention was at once excited
toward the latter point, and it was thought by many that
the line of the road, instead of following the valley of
Muskets, would be defiected westwardly in the north-
em part of the county, run down the valley of Pigeon
creek, and cross the river át Florence. No sooner was the
idea started, than a real furore of speculation seized a num-
ber of people, and a town site called Crescent City was laid
out on sections 24 and 25, in township 76, range 43, on
which a considerable village speedily sprang up. Joseph E.
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Johnson, the wide - awake editor of the Bugle, wbose farm
was situated a mile or two soutb of the new city, entered
into the scheme vrith great zeal, and was one of its leading
proprietors and principal promoters. Here he issued early
in 1856, the first number of tbe Crescent City "Oracfe, a sev-
en-column weekly newspaper, which he continued to puh-
lish for upwards of two years at the same place. Crescent^
City grew rapidly during the years 1856 and 1857. A
large number of frame, buildings were erected — some of
them were bandsome structures. Stores and shops were
opened, and a hotel established, A steam saw- and grist-
mill was erected, and a school bouse built and a school
opened. A. post office was established early in 1857, and
Lewis J. ^ Goddard appointed jmst master. "íohnson &
Blake, Reel & Dutrow, Samuel Eggleston, William Men-
ry, and Allison & Nutting were the principal business men
of the place. But the financial crash of 1857, vrith the cer-
tainty that tbe Mississippi & Missouri railroad would adhere
to its original line to Council Bluffs, was rapidly fatal to the
growth and life of Crescent City. Toward the end of 1858
it began rapidly to decline. Johnson removed his printing
office to Cpuncil Bluffs, and closed his store ; others soon
followed bis example, and by the end of the year £1860, the
village was very nearly deserted. A post office has however
been maintained, and a population of a hundred or so still
cluster around the point where once speculation and busi-
ness were alike active. A large number of the best build-
ings bave been removed— either to Council Bluffs or to
farms in tbe immediate vicinity. Meantime the township
of Crescent, which is twelve miles in length from east to
west, and is now crossed from north to south by the "Chi-
cago & Northwestern railroad, has steadily grown to form
one of the finest farming portions of tbe county. It is well
watered and very well supplied with timber. Its population
in 1860 was five bundred and thirty-five, and in 1870 it
bad increased to one thousand one bundred and seventeen,
•It has always been largely democratic in politics.



1872.] HISTOKT OF POTTAWATTAMIE COUNTY. 179

The first number of the Council Blufls Nonpareil, a weekly
newspaper of nine columns, appeared early in May, 1857,
proprietors, Maynard and ' Long ; editor, William W.'TVIay-
nard. It was a handsomely printed aud ably edited sheet,
and its pxihlication, under various editors and publishers,
has heen continued to the present time. The Chromotype
continued to be issued during a part of the year ; but, be-
coming the property of Mr. A. P. Tîently, it was converted
into a democratic organ, and called the ^emoeratic Clarion.
Finally, in 1868, the material on which it was printed was
removed from the county, and the Nonpareil and ^ugle con-
tinued for several years the ouly papers published iu Coun-
cil Blnffs, with tho exception of a few mouths in 1859, during
which a paper called the Council Bluffs Press was issued
by J. E. 'Johnson. The Bugle was printed daily for about
six months during the summer of 1857, but the experi-
ment not proving a profitable one, its daily issue was sus-
pended for several years, and until the war was under way.

On thiî 19th of June, 1857, a special election was held
in the county, at which the question of subscribing three
hundred thousand dollars to the stock of the Mississippi
& Missouri railroad, was submitted to the electors, to be
paid for in bonds of the county, having twenty years to run,
and drawing interest payable semi - annually, at the rate of
ten per cent per annum — bonds not to be issued unless
the then established route and terminus of the road should
be retained, nor uutil work on said road was actually com-
menced within the limits of the county. Public atteution
was deeply excited on the snbject — especially iu tbe city
of Council Bluffs, in which eight hundred and forty-seven
votes were polled, all in the affirmative except fourteen ; out-
side of city two hundi-ed and twenty-seven votes in all were
cast, of which two hundred and five were in the negative,
and twenty-two in the affirmative — leaving a clear major-
ity in the county in favor of subscribing the stock and issu-
ing the bonds, of six bundred and thirty-six. As the
bonds were not to be issued uutil work bad actually com-
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menced in the county, the question was allowed to rest un-
til the fall of 1858, when an earnest and finally snccessful
effort was made to secure their issuance. For that purpose
the promise was made that work should actually he com-
menced within the limits of the county, and in fact, a few
thousand dollars were expended in the Musketo valley in
the following spring, in grading ahout half a mile of the
road hed. The county judge, at the time, however, held
back from signing the bonds, and it was not nntil several
excited public meetings had been held, and a strong pres-
sure had been brought upon him, that he finally consented
to affix his signature. The houds, to the amount of one
hundred thousand dollars, bearing date the 29th day of
January, 1859, were placed in the hands of certain parties
in "Council Bluffs, but finally they went into the posses-
sion of the railroad officials. These disposed of them to
the amount of thirty^five thousand dollars and for the interest
on the bonds thus sold, heavy judgments have heen obtained
against the county within the last two years, which the tax-
payers are now paying off. The remaining bonds, to the
amount of sixty-five thousand dollars, were never placed in
the market; hut were finally surrendered up to the county
in exchange for the stock issued to it by the old Mississippi
& Missouri railroad company. Fortunately, these were the
only bonds ever issued to any railroad company by Potta-
wattamie county.

Early in 1857, a subscription was circulated, which
amounted in the aggregate, to ahout ten thousand dollars,
and a lot purchased preparatory to the erection of a Près- '
byterian church in Council Bluffs. This church was first
organized in the fall of 1856, under the auspices of the
Reverend Mr. Bell, a well known Presbyterian missionary
in the west. The first elders of the church were James
B.^Rue and Thomas'Ofiicer. The legal organization dates
from February, 1857, when articles of corporation were
filed, containing the names of John T.*'Baldwin, Thomas
Officer, James A. Johnson, 0. "W.'Boyers, and W. H. M.
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Pusey, as trustees. So far as I have been able to find. Rev-
erend John'Hancock, formerly of the state of Kentucky,
was the first Presbyterian' clergyman who officiated in
Council Bluflä. He came here in 1856, an entire stranger.
After remaining a few days, he passed over to Bellevue, Ne-
braska, where he met vrith the Reverend William Hamil-
ton, the missionary to the Omaha Indians at that place.
Retnrning, he made the aequaintance of Messrs.'Officer,
'Boyers,'Rue, and others, and soon after called together the
scattered members of the church in the city, and com-
menced his labors among them. He belonged to the old-
school branch of the church, and his pastoral relations
continued until the fall of 1860. The erection of a brick
church which had been eommenced in 1857, was suspended
after the walls in the basement had been completed, and
was not resumed until 1865 ; the congregation in the mean-
time occupying rented rooms, and finally a temporary
frame building erected for the purpose, on Pearl street. In
the early days of the county, the holding of fairs and festi-
vals was a frequent and snecessful way of raising money.
One of these fairs held on Christmas day and evening, in
1856, by this church, proved remarkably successful, and
realized over one thousand dollars to its treasnry.

On the first day of August, 1857, the corner-stone of St.
Paul's ̂ Episcopal church, was laid in Council Blnffs by the
Eight Reverend Henry W. Lee, the Episcopal Bishop of
Iowa. The Reverend George W. Watson was present, and
assisted in the services. The people assembled in the Con- '
gregational church, and marched in procession to the lot,
where the stone was prepared. A hrief history of the par-
ish, with the newspapers of the city, a few coins, and some
other articles were deposited in the box prepared for the
purpose, and over this a large stone was deposited ; after
which an appropriate address was delivered by the bisbop.
St. Paul's parish had been organized on the 17th of April,
1856, through the efforts of Reverend E. W.'''Peet, then of
Des Moines, who was the first Episcopal clergyman who
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visited Pottawattamie county, or held service within its lim-
its. The first vestrymen of the church were J. B. Beers,
Horace'Everett, W. C.'James, J. P.'Casady, D. C. Bloomer,"
A. ^Cochran, T. P.'Treynor, Samuel "'Perin, and G. W.
Dodge. In the fall the parish was visited for the first time
by Bishop'Lee, accompanied by the venerable Bishop Kem-
per, the missionary bishop of the northwest. In Febru-
ary, 1857, the Reverend George W.''Watson arrived and
took charge of the parish, as missionary. He also had
charge of a parish in Omaha, and divided his services
equally between them. It was through his infiuence, and
tbe active zeal of two or three members of the parish, that
a lot was purchased, and preparations made for the erection
of a church. Nothing further was done toward effecting
the object, beyond laying tbe corner-stone which still stands
—just as it was left on the beautiful summer morning in
1857, in which it was laid. A small frame edifice was how-
ever erected on the church lot in 1860, which is still used
as a place of worship by the congregation. The Reverend
G. W. Watson remained in charge of the parish until the
spring of 1860.

At the election held in the year x857, for county officers,
the republicans—who were in a decided minority in the
county—made no nominations, but the candidates sup-
ported by them were mostly elected. D. S. Nye was cho-
sen county judge; W. D.'Turner, treasurer and recorder;
William* Baker, sheriff, and Samuel ' Perin, county sur-
veyor. The total vote for sheriff, stood as follows : Wil-
liam Baker, two hundred and twenty-three; William L.

•'Biggs, two hundred and twelve ; D. B.''ciark, one hundred
and sixty-six; Egbert'EUswortb, eighty-eight.

At the October election, two hundred and sixty-four votes
were given for the new constitution, and four hundred and
eighty-one against it. For striking the word " white " out
of the suffrage section, seven affirmative votes were cast,
and two hundred and fifty-seven in the negative. The Non-'^
•pareil, the republican organ in the county at this time.
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strongly opposed negro suffrage. For governor, Benjamin
M.'Samuels received four hundred and sixty-three votes,
and R. P. Lowe, two hundred and five. For senator, W,
H, M.Tusey had four hundred and twenty-six votes ; Frank

'Stut, two bundred and forty-five. For representative, S,
H, Casady received four bundred and sixty-two, and J. W.
Denison two hundred and four votes. Pusey aud Casady
were elected. This year the votes in the county
were divided among the different townships as fol-
lows: Kane, five bundred and four; Centre, sixteen;
Crescent, eigbty-nine; Knox, fifteen; Rockford, thir-
ty-eight; Walnut, nine; Macedonia, fifteen. During the
canvass Messrs. Samuels and Lowe visited the county and
held a joint discussion at Council Bluffs.

County Judge D. S.'Nye entered upon his office with the
promise of making a reform and improvement in the man-
ner of conducting county affairs and county finances ; the
latter especially, it was charged, bad been badly managed
by his predecessor, and large amounts of swamp land mon-
ey loaned upon insufficient securities. But the promises
held out, of better things under the new administration,
were hardly fulfilled. During the early part of 1859, a
tract of land for a poor-farm was purchased, at a price, it
was believed, far beyond its true value, and, when the
order of the county judge, in making tbe purchase, was
found to be illegal, an act was promptly passed by the gen-
eral assembly—then in session — confirming his action.
Public sentiment in tbe county at tbe time was greatly
outraged by the proceeding, and some of bis sureties hav-
ing withdrawn from his ofiicial bond, Nye, on the first of
May, 1858, resigned his office, and its duties thereafter de-
volved upon J, H. Sherman, the county prosecuting attor-
ney. The latter soon after made an order directing the
drainage commissioner to drain the swamp and overflowed
lands of the county, and large amounts of money were ex-
pended on the work during this and the following year.
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The tide of speculation which marked the close of the
year 1856, coutinued in full force in "Council Bluffs during
the spring and summer of 1857. Sales of lots and lands
in and adjoining the town site were frequent, aud steadily
advancing iu price. Lots on the business streets reached
to one hundred, and one hundred and fifty dollars per foot,
and it seemed as though no one could make a purchase that
was too high for some one else to take it off his hands at
an increased price. The assessed value of real and per-
sonal property within the limits of the towu, as returned
by tbe township assessor, amounted on the first day of
July, to the large sum of two million two bundred and sev-
enty-six thousand six hundred dollars. As a large propor-
tion of this property consisted of unoccupied town lots and
lands, it was, of course, based upon speculative values.
Knowing ones looked upon tbis state of tbings as alto-
gether unusual, and predicted that a crash must soon come
—as indeed it did—but no one cared for these prophets of
disaster at that time ; money was plenty ; lots sold rapidly,
anda continued stream of uew-comers kept up the delu-
sion, and steadily enhanced tbe rate at wbich sales of
real estate were made. At tbe same time a wonderful
degree of activity in all branches of business was apparent.
The river was iu fine condition, and steamers arrived at the
landing with goods from below, almost daily. Lumber
yards were opened, and building material ̂ always enor-
mously high—was abundant and sold readily. Trade was
active, and the merchants were all doing a good business.
The emigration across the plains was large, and the demand
for corn and country produce was fully equal to the supply,
and at high prices. A large number of substantial dwel-
lings were commenced early in tbe season, and finished
before cold weather. Mr. W. C. Ajames purchased the
property at the corner of Main and Broadway streets, and
commenced, in connection with Milton"̂  Rogers aud W. B.
Lewis, the erection of a new three - story building — since
known as the James block. Mr. J. M. ̂ Palmer, besidek
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fimshing off the hlock which hears his name, also began
the work on a new two-story building afterwards known as
Concert Hall, one of the handsomest ever ereeted in the
city, hut which was, after a few years, destroyed by fire.
Messrs. John A. ̂ Andrews, F. A. "Tuttle, and H. C.'ííutt
made a large purchase of real estate, in the then southern
part of the city, and commenced work on a large hotel loca-
ted ahout half a mile from the business part of the town.
Although the proprietors expended from twenty thonsand
to twenty - five thousand dollars upon it, the structure was
never finished, and was finally torn down and the materi-
als used in the erection of other buildings, some years
afterwards, and the spot where it stood is now (1872) oc-
cupied hy the Congregational church.''

The banking firms in business in the city this summer
(1857), were the following: 'Officer & Pusey ; 'Green,
"Weare, & Benton ;'Baldwin & Dodge ;*'S. H. Riddel &
Co.; and 'J. M. Palmer & Co. Colonel Thomas H.

^Benton, the resident member of the second firm, erected a
fine hrick dwelling in one of the glens with which the
city abounds ; and Messrs. Officer and Pusey each built
substantial dwelling houses on the south side of the puhlic
square. Mr. Benton also erected a fine banking house on
Broadway, into which he moved his office ahout the first of
Septemher. All these hankers, except the first named firm,
dealt more or less extensively in Nebraska currency, of
which large quantities were afloat in the community. Col-
onel Benton was president of the American Exchange
Bank of Omaha; and also of a similar institution in Belle-
vue. The failure of these institutions early in the autumn,
led to the closing of his own banking house at Council
Bluffs. This ev«nt occurred on the 25th day of Sep-
tember, and inflicted quite heavy losses upon a number of
persons whose money had been deposited with him. Col-
onel Benton made earnest and persistent efl'orts to meet his
ohligations ; hut many of his hanking loans turned out to
be nearly or quite worthless, and, after surrendering all these

24
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np to meet his liabilities, together with his homestead, con-
siderable amounts still remained unpaid. His failure was
the beginning of financial distress in the whole Missouri
slope.

Thenceforward money became less and less abundant.
The Nebraska banks one after another went down, and
their bills became worthless ; and the fever of speculation
was, for a long time to come, most decidedly checked.
Town lots gradually depreciated in value, and the busi-
ness of real estate dealers became distressingly dull. Prices
fell lower and lower, and in the cit\' of "Council Bluffs lots
that in 1856-7 sold readily for three thousand or four thou-
sand dollars, could hardly, at the end of four years from
that date, be sold for one-fourth of these sums. For rear
sons, however, which I shall presently notice, the residents
of this city never realized the full extent of the financial
disaster of 1857, as keenly as some other sections of the
country.

Boomer township was organized on the 8th of January,
1858. It is situated on the northern line of the county; is
twelve miles long from east to west, and six miles wide
from north to south, being town 77, ranges 42 and 48. Itis
traversed diagonally from the north-east by Pigeon and
Honey creeks; and along these considerable settlements
were made by the "^Mormons, as early as 1847-8. The old-
est residents of this class were Robert Kent, Samuel JÎate-
man, Joseph Wild, John Macklin, Joseph Beardsley, and
William^McKeon. They all remained in the county after
the general emigration to Salt Lake in 1852, and organized
a branch of the Mormon church, opposed to the pretensions
of Brigham Young, and recognizing'Joseph Smith as their
spiritual leader. The church still exists, and has a consid-
erable number of members in the county, and holds its
meetings regularly in the diflferent school houses of the town-
ship. Joseph Hall, who came into the township in 1852 ;
Z. W.''Remington, and William ^Goodman, in 1854; and
Isaac M. Sigler, in 1857, were the first Gentile settlers.
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The first township officers elected in 1858, were : —
•• Samuel Bateman—Justice of the Peace.
visaac M. Sigler—Town Clerk.
»Henry Givens, Allen Jones, and Joseph'Hall—Trustees.
James Kent was the first representative of the township

on the board of supervisors, serving two years. He was
succeeded by Isaac M. Sigler, who served six years.
The first school in the township was opened in 1859, in an
underground room in Sigler's yard. The township settled
up slowly. From the first it was strongly democratic in
politics — there being for several years only one republican
vote in the township.

The land office at Council Bluffs was reopened for the
sale and entry of government land, on the 23d of February,
1858, by James'Pollard, register, and A. H. Palmer, receiv-
er. There was a great crowd of land-buj'ers in attendance
for several months, and the hotels of the city were crowded.
Up to the 14th of August, seven hundred and nine thousand
eight hundred and fifty-nine acres had been located with
land warrants, and twenty thousand and nine acres entered
and paid for with cash. Under the operation of this sys-
tem nearly all the public lands in southwestern Iowa were,
in the course of a few years, disposed of, or granted to the
railroads, so that when the homested law of 1862 was pas-
sed, only a very small amount was left for settlement under
its henign provisions. In June of that year, James Pollard
resigned the office of register, and Lewis S. Hill, who had
heen a most capable and efficient clerk for several years,
was appointed in his place.

The leading land agency firms engaged in business this
year were Henn, Williarn, Hooton & Co.;''Casady & Test;
'Baldwin & Dodge ; Sam'^Perin ; Loudon Mullin ; A.^Coch-
ran ; 'Officer & Pusey ; and Horace^Everett.

At the annual city election in March, 1858, the following
city officers were elected : —•

Mayor—J. S. Hooton.'
Recorder—Frank *̂
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Treasurer—C. W. Boyer,"
City Marshal—C. W, Bryan,"^ ^
Aldermen—First Ward, J. B.Xewis and B, Hagg; Sec-

ond Ward, J, P. ' Casady ; Third Ward, Milton Rogers ;''
Fourth Ward, A."'Cocbran; Fifth Ward, A. Shoemaker,"

The following city officers were appointed : —
City Attorney—C. E. Stone, '
Gity JSngineer—-Samuel Perin. ̂
City Supervisor—Elias Thornton."
The principal work accomplished during this year by the

city council, was the digging of a new channel for Indian
creek, a small stream that meandered through the valley in
which a portion of the town is built. Like all western
streams, its bed was very crooked and quite deep, but, in
seasons of bigh water, it overflowed its banks ; often doing
much damage to adjoining property. The project of cut-
ting a new channel — by which it was made to run nearly
due west, out into the Missouri bottom — had heen a favor-
ite one for some time. This year it was finally accom-
plished, mainly through the exertions and energy of Col-
onel A. Cochran, a member of the city council. To effect
tbis object, the mill property of Madison Dagger was pur-
chased by the city, and paid for in city bonds, which have
since been redeemed ; and the locality where the mill and
mill race were situated is now nearly all occupied by hand-
some dwellings. In several law suits which have been
brougbt against the city in subsequent years, for damages
alleged to have been caused by the straightening of the
creek, tbe legality and good policy of tbe work bave been
fully vindicated. The new channel, beside furnishing &
fair supply of water at all seasons of the year, furnishes
excellent drainage for the city; and, when the work of
properly protecting its banks is completed, its beneficial in-
fluence upon tbe health and convenience of the inhabitants
will be still more fully acknowledged.

On the 19th of May, 1858, a convention was held in Coun-''
cil Bluffs, for fte purpose of promoting the construction of
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a railroad from tbat city to Saint Joseph. Fonr counties im
Iowa, two counties in Nebraska, and tbree counties in Mis-
sotiri were represented by delegates. Tbe proposed rail-
road was quite fully aud favorably considered, aud an or-
ganization for its construction effected. The first officers,
of the new company were : —

' S. F. 'Snckolls—President.
"Horace Everett— Vice President.
^8. S. Curtis—Secretary.
V L. NuckoUs— Treasurer.

'H. C. îfutt was appointed chief engineer, and he imme-
diately proceeded to make a survey of the portion of the
road extending from Council Blufls to the state line. His
first and preliminary report was submitted to the stockhold-
ers at a meeting held on the 12th of July following, at.
which time Enosl-owe, S. F'NuckolIs, B. F.'Tlector, J. W.

/Coolidge, L.'îTuckolls, L. W. 'íabbitt, J. S.'Jackson, J. D..
"'Test, and A.'^Cochran, were elected directors for the ensu-
ing year. Mr. STntt's report was highly favorable to tbe
construction of the road. Very little grading would be re-
quired for tbe road-bed, and only one or two bridges of any
importance, on tbe entire route to tbe state line.

At the April election iu 1858, beld in the couuty, James"
B. Rue was elected connty superintendent of schools, by
three hundred aud fifty-six votes against two huudred and
forty-one for Samuel "^Eggleston, and nineteen for Thomas

'Officer. On the 28th of June, the vote for a state bank
and for a general banking law was largely in the affirma-
tive. At the August election, J. H. Sherman was elected
county judge; C. P. Kellogg, clerk of the district court;-
and C. P.' Smith, coroner. The fourth electiou tbis year-
was held in October, ̂ but was not conducted witb a great
deal of spirit S. R. 'Curtis aud Henry H.*^Trimble the- op-
posing candidates for congress, each visited the county and
delivered addresses, but the meetings were not laig;eljr
attended. Tbe result was as follows : —
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"Trimble 451
'•Curtis 242
And the majority for the other democratic candidate

was about two hundred. At the sanie time E. H. Sears'
was elected district judge, and R. B.^'Parrott prosecuting
attorney of the third judicial district, to which Pottawatta-
mie county belonged. The former was the republican and
the latter the deniocratic candidate ; the opposing candi-
dates were J. M.' Dews and Samuel Forrey.

Silver Creek township was organized on the 7th of Sep-
tember, 1858. Its name is taken from a beautiful stream
of water that runs across its eastern part, and along which
the first settlements were made as early as 1848. The old

^Mormon trail, and subsequent stage road, crossed the creek
in section 31, town 74—41, and here a frame dwelling and
barn were erected by a man named Mace, in 1850, which
were long used as a stage station. The western part
of Silver Creek township is crossed by Keg creek, and near
the point where this is crossed hy the stage road, a settle-
ment was early made by a man named Shaw, who sold out
to'Williani Campbell, in 1852. About the same time James
M. Putney and Thomas'Mofi'att settled near the same place.
Thomas Mofi'att, in December, 1858, made the first entry of
land in the township. The next entries were made early
in 1854, hy Lyman'Campbell and Pleasant Taylor. The
next settlers in the township were Edward ''Ward, John
Bratten, and J. D.^Craven. The township settled up slowly,
and, at the time of its organisation, had only about a dozen
votes. It has at present two school houses within its limits.
The population in 1870, hy the United States census, was
two hundred and thirty-one.

The first exhihition of the Pottawattamie county agricul-
tural society was held at* Council Bluffs on the 13th and
14th of October, 1858. The number of entries was quite
large, and the display of stock and agricultual productions
very encouraging. Caleb* Baldwin was president of the so-
ciety ; W. H.' Kinman, secretary ; and among the exhihit-
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ors at the fair, and those most active in promoting its ob-
jects, ̂ were L. W.'Babbitt, D. B.^Clark, William •'Garner,
H. A. Terry, J. E. Johnson, M.' Turley, and others. Col.
Babbitt's famous borse, Cherokee, carried ofl' tbe first and
highest premium of eight dollars. The ladies' tournament
on the second day, excited a great deal of interest, and two
fine saddles were awarded to the best riders. The ladies
who competed for these prizes were, Mrs.^Gough, Miss Jo-
sephine^Biggs, Mrs.'Wright, Miss Amy "White, Mrs. Mil-

'̂ ton, Mrs. 'Robinson, and Miss Delia Jackson. As usual
with all public gatherings in those days, a social dance fol-
lowed in the éîfening following the second day of the fair,
which was largely attended by the citizens, both male and
female.

On the morning of the 4th day of December, 1858, Mr.
'A. D. Long, one of the publishers of the Council Bluffs
'Nonpareil, was found, frozen to death, in a small creek near
the centre of the city, into which he had fallen from an
open hridge while on his way to his residence the evening
previous. The night had been intensely cold, and it was
supposed that he had been so henumbed by the fall that he
was unable to extricate himself from the icy channel. This
sad event threw a deep gloom over the community. Mr. Long
was a warmhearted, steadfast friend, a kind hushand and
father, and possessed those genial and social traits that
endeared his memory to a large circle of friends.

I have already remarked that the people of Council
Bluffs were never called upon to realize the full severity of
the hard times that followed the financial crash of 1857, as
keenly as some other sections of the country. This was
principally owing to the tide of emigration that was con-
stantly sweeping across the state of Iowa for the western
territories and California. The Missouri river towns, and
especially the county seat of Pottawattamie county, were
the great outfitting points for a large proportion of these
emigrants ; hence, trade was active ; merchandise sold freely
for cash, and the farmer found a good market for his corn
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and wheat, and at fair prices. The discovery of gold in
Cherry creek, in what is now the territory of Colorado,
greatly augmented and increased this traffic. Captain J.

'H. Smith, a resident of Council Bluffs, is said to have
Ijeen the first person who found the sparkling metal in the
bed of the river in that now famous locality. The first an-
nouncement of this discovery was made in the Council

•'Bluffs Nonpareil, on the 11th of September, 1858, and the
article had the following heading, in startling capitals : —

" PIKE'S PEAK GOLD DISGINGS. EUKEKA ! EUREKA ! ! GOLD

MINES WITHIN 500 MILES. THE BEST ROUTE THITHER.

THE YELLOW FEVER SPREADING RAPIDLY. THE ONLY AN-

TIDOTE—PICK AND SHOVEL."

And from that time for the next year or two, a large por-
tion of the columns of all the papers published in the country
were filled with articles on the new gold regions, and the
best route to them. ^Council Blufi's, Nebraska City, and
Saint Joseph were the rival outfitting towns, and the public
press of each labored to convince the country that the hest
and shortest, and most direct road to the diggings lay
through its limits. An elaborate map appears in the pa-
pers of Council Bluffs, in January, 1859, of the road from
Council Bluffs to the Cherry Creek gold mines, of which
thousands of copies were published and scattered over the
country. A numher of residents of Pottawattamie county
left for the new gold fields, in the fall of 1858, among whom
was Samuel S. Curtis, whose letters appeared regularly in
the Nonpareil. Reports continued uniformly favorable for
several months, and a steady stream of gold-seekers — in
spite of the inclemency of the weather — pushed across the
plains. Many of these were but poorly provided for the
hardships and privations of the way ; hundreds, it was
asserted, perished from cold and starvation. As the spring
of 1859 advanced, the reports were less favorable, and not
a few of the newspapers at the east pronounced the whole
thing a humbug. In April and May a regular stampede
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among the emigrants commenced and hundreds of them re-
crossed the Missouri on their return. Some of these peo-
ple were highly indignant at the people and newspapers on
the Missouri, who, it was charged, misled them into setting
out on their bootless search for gold, and threats of ven-
geance were sometimes heard. This led timorous people .
to fear for the safety of their property.

Early in the spring of 1859, William H.' Kinsman, a
young man of indomitable perseverance, who for several
months had been writing for the 'Nonpareil, walked the enr
tire distance from Council Bluffs to Cherry creek. As he
marched westward be sent back enconraging letters, which
were publisbed in the county papers. He reached the min-
ing region early in June, and his first letter, giving the
result of his explorations and observations in the gold re-
gion, reached Council Bluffs in mid-summer. It was highly
favorable, and produced a great excitement. The Nonpareil
printing office was illuminated; a band of music paraded
the streets, and a crowd gathered in iront of Palmer's block
where addresses were delivered by Dr. Farmer and others.
The announcement of the event in the Nonpareil was char-
acteristic, and spread out in flaming capitals, read as fol-
lows : —

" LET THE SHANGHAI CROW." (A grotesque picture of a
rooster here followed.)

"LET THE HAWKEYE GROAN, LETTER FROM OUR SPECIAL

CORRESPONDENT, W . H , KINSMAN, ESQ. THE GOLD OP

PIKE'S PEAK NO LONSBR A MYTH. OUR FONDEST HOPES

REALIZED. GRAND ILLUMINATION, REJOICINS OF THE

PEOPLE. TRUTH VINDICATED. JUSTICE TRIUMPHANT."

The expression, " Let the Hawkeye groan," referred to
the course of the Burlington Hawkeye, which had, on seve-
ral occasions, pronounced the whole story about the discov-
ery of gold on Cherry creek a wicked deception and fraud.
At the same time, the letters of Horace Greeley, A. D.Ilich-
ardson, and Henry Vibbard were published, giving also a

26
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highly favorable report of tbe prospects of tbe mines in the
Pike's Peak regions.

This seemed to settle the question, and indeed, from this
time no oue was hardy enough to deny the existence of
gold in the new mining region. The emigration went
steadily forward, and the wagons of the emigrants lined
the roads and filled the valleys, duriug tbe summer season,
of Iowa and Nebraska, uutil tbe construction of the Union ''
Pacific railroad furnished a quicker, cheaper, and more
convenient mode of travel to tbe mountains, and the rich
mines witb wbicb tbey abound.

[TO BE CONTINUED.]

' EEMIKISOEHOES OF EAELT SETTLEES.

BY K. B. HROFF, MARENSO, IOWA.

V

HENRY SPRAGUE came to this city from his advanced
trading-post, some thirty-five miles above this place,

on the Iowa river just above what is now called Raven
Creek. He had selected this as a point for trading with the
Indians. The company consisted of his father, brother,
wife, and himself. After having constructed his temporary
log shanty, he returned to bis former home at Brush Run
(nowTïomestead), for some impleïAeut that had been for-
gotten. A trip tbere and back (eighty miles) would now
be considered quite an undertaking. (When he came back
here it was late in the fall of 1848.) It was snowing very
fast — large, plushy fiakes fell so fast that he feared his
progress would be impeded. He tried to buy a pair of
suow-shoes from an old Indian here ; but, failing in this,
he bonght some coffee, sugar, and tea at the only store we
theu had in this place, and started homeward.




